

ISBN: 978 0 642 60746 1

© Australian Capital Territory, Canberra 2023

This work is copyright. Apart from any use as permitted under the *Copyright Act 1968*, no part may be reproduced by any process without written permission from the ACT Electoral Commission, except that permission is given for use and reproduction of the statistics included in this publication.

Produced by the ACT Electoral Commission PO Box 272, Civic Square ACT 2608.

Email: elections@act.gov.au

Phone: (02) 6205 0033

ACT Electoral Commission homepage: http://www.elections.act.gov.au

ACT Government homepage: http://www.act.gov.au

Phone: Canberra 13ACT1 or 132 281

Table of contents

Suggestions and comments	1
Making submissions	1
More information	1
General information	2
Why is a redistribution taking place?	2
Who is on the Redistribution Committee?	2
The redistribution process	2
Legal requirements for a redistribution	3
Current and projected electoral enrolment statistics	4
Methodology for the projections	5
Assumptions	6
Geography	7
Disclaimer	7
Table 1 - Australian Capital Territory projections	8
Table 2 – Projections for current localities in Brindabella	12
Table 3 - Projections for current localities in Ginninderra	13
Table 4 - Projections for current localities in Kurrajong	14
Table 5 - Projections for current localities in Murrumbidgee	15
Table 6 - Projections for current localities in Yerrabi	16
Map of current boundaries	17

Suggestions and comments

Members of the public, political parties and other organisations are invited to make suggestions to the Redistribution Committee for the Australian Capital Territory on proposed electoral boundaries for ACT Legislative Assembly elections. The suggestions will be made public and comments on these suggestions are also invited.

Making submissions

The Redistribution Committee will formally invite suggestions and comments on Wednesday, 1 February 2023. **Written suggestions** relating to the redistribution of the ACT Legislative Assembly electorates must be lodged with the Redistribution Committee on or before Tuesday, 28 February 2023.

Copies of all suggestions received by the Committee will be available for public inspection at the office of the ACT Electoral Commission or from the Commission's website at **www.elections.act.gov.au** from Wednesday, 1 March 2023.

Written comments relating to any suggestions must then be lodged by Tuesday, 14 March 2023.

Suggestions and comments should be lodged with the Redistribution Committee.

Online using a **graphical boundary mapping tool** at www.elections.act.gov.au/redistribution

Or:

ACT Electoral Commission Nara Centre, 3 Constitution Avenue CANBERRA CITY ACT 2601

Postal Address: GPO Box 172, CANBERRA ACT 2601

Phone: (02) 6205 0033

Email: redistribution@act.gov.au

It is important to note that these deadlines are set by legislation, and accordingly **late submissions will not be accepted**.

More information

The ACT Electoral Commission is making available electoral enrolment information for use by interested persons and organisations. Statistics relating to current enrolment and projected enrolment at the time of the next election are at the end of this booklet and may be downloaded from the Commission's website.

Other information related to the redistribution can be obtained from the ACT Electoral Commission at the above address or from the Commission's website at www.elections.act.gov.au

General information

Why is a redistribution taking place?

The *Electoral Act 1992* provides that a redistribution of electorates for the ACT Legislative Assembly must begin as soon as practicable after the beginning of the period 2 years before the date of the next election. The next ACT Legislative Assembly election is due to be held on 19 October 2024.

Who is on the Redistribution Committee?

The Redistribution Committee consists of the ACT Electoral Commissioner (Mr Damian Cantwell AM CSC), the ACT Planning and Land Authority (Mr Ben Ponton), the ACT Surveyor-General (Mr Greg Ledwidge) and the Director of Demography, Australian Bureau of Statistics (Ms Beidar Cho). The Committee has the task of producing a proposed set of boundaries and names for electorates for the ACT Legislative Assembly.

The redistribution process

The redistribution is carried out in accordance with the Electoral Act with several opportunities for public participation throughout the process.

Step 1 - Public suggestions

Before the Redistribution Committee makes its proposal, any interested persons or organisations who wish to make suggestions regarding the redistribution are given 28 days to lodge suggestions in writing with the Redistribution Committee. The Committee will formally invite public suggestions on Wednesday, 1 February 2023. Suggestions must be received by Tuesday, 28 February 2023.

Step 2 - Comments on the public suggestions

The public suggestions will be made available for public inspection from Wednesday, 1 March 2023 at the office of the ACT Electoral Commission and from the Commission's website. Any comments on the suggestions must be lodged in writing within 14 days. The closing date for comments is Tuesday, 14 March 2023.

Step 3 - The first proposed redistribution

The Redistribution Committee considers the public suggestions and comments before making the proposed redistribution. Maps showing the proposed boundaries and names of the electorates will be published in a newspaper and exhibited at the office of the ACT Electoral Commission and on the Commission's website.

Step 4 - Objections to the proposed redistribution

Following the publication of the first proposed redistribution there will be 28 days within which initial objections to the proposed redistribution may be lodged by members of the public or organisations.

Step 5 - Objections considered by the Augmented Electoral Commission

The objections are considered by the Augmented Electoral Commission. The Augmented Electoral Commission comprises the Chairperson of the ACT Electoral Commission and the other part-time Member of the Commission, sitting together with the members of the Redistribution Committee. The Augmented Electoral Commission may hold public hearings into objections.

Step 6 - The second proposed redistribution

After it has considered all the initial objections lodged, the Augmented Electoral Commission makes a second proposed redistribution. If this second proposal is not significantly different from the first proposal, the second set of proposed boundaries will become the final boundaries for the ACT.

Step 7 - Further objections

If the second proposal is significantly different from the proposal made by the Redistribution Committee, the Augmented Electoral Commission will invite further objections from members of the public or organisations. Further objections must be lodged within 28 days.

Step 8 - Final determination

The Augmented Electoral Commission will then consider any further objections. The Augmented Electoral Commission may again hold public hearings into objections. Following its consideration of all objections, it will make a final determination of boundaries and names of electorates for the ACT.

Legal requirements for a redistribution

In making its proposed distribution, the Redistribution Committee is bound by section 36 of the Electoral Act and section 67D of the Commonwealth *Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988*.

The Electoral Act provides that the Territory must be divided into five separate electorates with five members of the Legislative Assembly to be elected from each electorate.

The Self-Government Act sets out the following formula for calculating a quota:

Number of Territory electors X Number of electorate members
Number of Territory members

The current quota as at 31 August 2022 is 62,531 electors. The projected quota is 62,986 electors.

In summary, the Electoral Act and the Self-Government Act provide that the Redistribution Committee and the Augmented Electoral Commission shall -

- (a) ensure that the number of electors in an electorate immediately after the redistribution is within the range of not greater than 110%, or less than 90% of the quota;
- (b) endeavour to ensure, as far as practicable, that the number of electors in an electorate at the time of the next general election of members of the Legislative Assembly will not be greater than 105%, or less than 95%, of the expected quota for the electorate at that time; and
- (c) duly consider -
 - (i) the community of interests within each proposed electorate, including economic, social and regional interests;
 - (ii) the means of communication and travel within each proposed electorate;
 - (iii) the physical features and area of each proposed electorate;
 - (iv) the boundaries of existing electorates; and
 - (v) the boundaries of divisions and sections fixed under the *Districts Act 2002*.

Current and projected electoral enrolment statistics

Statistical Area Level 1 (SA1)

■ SA1s are areas defined in the Australian Statistical Geography Standard (ASGS) Edition 3 and are generally designed as the smallest unit for the release of Census data. They generally have a population of 200 to 800 people, with an average population size of about 400 people. SA1s in remote and regional areas generally have smaller populations than those in urban areas. SA1s are used as the building blocks for other ASGS defined regions such as Sections of State, Urban Centre and Localities and Remoteness Areas. There are approximately 61,800 SA1s and they cover the whole of Australia without gaps or overlaps. Population estimates are prepared for SA1s by breaking down estimates from the SA2 level.

Postal Area (POA)

Postal Areas are an ABS Mesh Block (MB) approximation of a general definition of postcodes. They are created by allocating whole Mesh Blocks (MBs) to postcodes based on the distribution of the estimated population within each MB. Postal Areas exclude postcodes that are not street delivery areas, such as post-office boxes, mail back competitions, large volume receivers and specialist delivery postcodes. They also exclude some postcodes which cannot be allocated a MB. This means that there are more postcodes than Postal Areas.

Further information on these statistical areas is contained in Australian Statistical Geography Standard Edition 3 - Main Structure and Greater Capital City Statistical Areas, July 2021, and Australian Statistical Geography Standard Edition 3 - Non ABS Structures, July 2021.

The following statistics have been compiled for the 2023 redistribution of ACT electoral boundaries in preparation for the 2024 election for the ACT Legislative Assembly. The statistics are shown for localities, generally suburbs, in alphabetical order (Table 1), and according to the electorate in which that locality currently resides (Tables 2 to 6). The locality statistics are also available for viewing, listed according to the specific ACT 'district' in which the locality resides, from the *Current and projected electoral enrolment statistics* spreadsheet available from the 2023 redistribution web page at www.elections.act.gov.au/electoral-boundaries/redistributions/2022-2023-redistribution

The enrolment projections are derived from population projections and from electoral enrolments as at 31 August 2022.

The population projections were calculated using Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) projections relating to Suburbs and Localities (SALs) and in some instances Statistical Area Level 1s (SA1s) defined according to the Australian Statistical Geography Standard (ASGS) Edition 3, July 2021

The SA2 projections also incorporate information gained from forecasts of new occupied dwellings in new development areas as provided by the ACT Government. This data takes into account the forecast growth of Canberra's population due to expected developments between June 2022 and June 2025.

The enrolment information used by the ABS in calculating enrolment projections was supplied by the Australian Electoral Commission and the projections are current as at 24 October 2022.

The compilation of these projections was undertaken by the ABS as a consultancy project for the ACT Electoral Commission.

Additional statistics available

The ABS may have other relevant data available on request. Inquiries should be made to the National Information and Referral Service on 1300 135 070.

Methodology for the projections

The method employed for projecting the population for the ACT was the cohort-component method, widely accepted as the best way of producing age/sex population projections. Annual fertility rates, mortality rates, internal migration, and overseas migration by age and sex were applied to the base population to produce a projected population, which then became the base population for projecting the next year and so on. This cycle was repeated until the projection horizon was reached.

For each SAL in the ACT, total population aged 18 years and over was projected using average historical growth rates and constrained to the total over-18 ACT population.

Complete process:

- 1. State projections. The ACT population at 30 June 2022-2025 was projected by age and sex, from a base (observed) population at 30 June 2021.
- 2. Statistical Area Level 2 projections. The total over-18 population of all SALs in the ACT at 30 June was projected, and constrained to the territory level.
- 3. Projected population at 31 August 2022 and 19 October 2024 calculated by linear interpolation between the projected populations at 30 June.
- 4. Projected population by ACT SALs was allocated to Suburbs and Localities (SALs) via a population-weighted geographical correspondence.
- 5. The enrolled population at 19 October 2024, by locality, was calculated by applying a ratio to the total over-18 population. The ratio was the enrolled population at 31 August 2022 by SAL divided by the population projection at that date.

For the purposes of this redistribution the suburb of Kambah has been split along the north-south running Drakeford drive. To determine current and projected enrolment figures for Kambah this projection uses ERP by SA1.

SA1 methodology

Projections for SA1s in Kambah are constrained to the total produced at the Suburb and Locality (SAL) level by using the projected elector count derived for 19 October 2022.

- 1. Inputs: total estimated resident population by age and sex, aged 18 and over, by SA1, at 30 June 2016-2021. The proportion of each SA1 population over-18 in relation to the total SA2 population of Kambah over-18 was calculated at each of these dates.
- 2. The average change in the proportions from 30 June 2016 to 30 June 2021 was used to create projected proportions at 31 Aug 2022 and 19 Oct 2024.
- 3. The projected SA2 populations at 31 Aug 2022 and 19 Oct 2024 were multiplied by the SA1 proportions at the respective dates, giving the projected population over-18 by SA1 at those dates.
- 4. The roll count at 31 Aug 2022, by SA1, was multiplied by the projected population, to give the enrolment ratio at that date.

5. The projected population at 19 Oct 2024, by SA1, was multiplied by the enrolment ratio, to create the projected enrolled population at that date. These counts were proportionally constrained to the total SA2 projected enrolled population.

Assumptions

The base population for the ACT cohort-component projections was preliminary age/sex estimated resident population (ERP) as at 30 June 2021, as released by the ABS in <u>National, state and territory population</u> (NTSP).

Assumptions for the territory-level projection were based on both recently observed and long-term trends for given components of population change. Assumptions for the components of natural increase (births and deaths) were taken from previously published NTSP data. Assumptions for both internal and overseas migration were developed by combining both observed and extrapolated data for the eight quarters from 30 September 2020 to 30 June 2022 to reflect the impacts of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic; the first seven quarters (30 September 2020 to 31 March 2022) used observed migration data from the most recently published NTSP, while the final quarter was calculated using the average value of the preceding three quarters. To project future migration outcomes, the annual pre-pandemic ten-year average from 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2019 was calculated. The difference between the 2022 data and this long-term trend was then calculated and the difference progressively added, with an additional one-third of the difference each year, to simulate a return to long-term trends in both internal and overseas migration from 30 June 2022 to 30 June 2025¹.

Population component	Year ending 30 June				
	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025
Fertility – total fertility rate	1.69	1.69	1.68	1.67	1.66
Mortality – standardised death rate	5.1	5.0	5.0	4.9	4.9
Net interstate migration – persons A	360	-3,470	-2,170	-880	420
Net overseas migration – persons ^A	-3,120	3,040	3,120	3,210	3,290

A Rounded to the nearest ten

For new suburbs under development, additional population projections were created using dwellings forecasts for 1 February 2022 to 1 February 2024 provided by the ACT Environment, Planning and Sustainable Development Directorate. When an additional 50 or dwellings more dwellings were predicted to be occupied by October 2024 compared to October 2022, a forecasted total population was calculated by multiplying the number of additional dwellings by 2.0 persons².

The ratio of enrolled population to total over-18 population at 31 August 2022 was assumed to be constant up to 19 October 2024, except for some outliers. Suburbs with very low ratios (less than

Page 6

¹ Research by Treasury's Centre of Population published for the May 2022 budget (The Australian Government the Treasury, Centre for Population, 2022), as well as by academics (Charles-Edwards et al., 2021) forecast that both internal and overseas migration will return to long-term averages by approximately 2024-2025

² This reflected the average number of persons per household as taken from the 2021 Census, accounting for over-18 population rather than total population.

0.4) of roll count to population were given a ratio of 0.4^3 . Future suburbs with no or little current population were given a ratio of 0.7, typical of new, similar suburbs. Some suburbs with declining population and a ratio greater than 1 were given a ratio equal to 1.

Geography

SAL boundaries are from the <u>Australian Statistical Geography Standard (ASGS) Edition 3, July</u> 2021, as used for the 2021 Census.

Disclaimer

It is important to recognise that the projection results in this report reflect the assumptions made about future fertility, mortality and migration trends. While these assumptions are formulated on the basis of an objective assessment of historical demographic trends and their likely future dynamics, there can be no certainty that they will be realised.

The ABS takes responsibility for the method employed, however in accordance with ABS policy regarding small area population projections, the assumptions used are the final responsibility of the client, and the projections are not official ABS population statistics.

The projections may be referred to as "...projections prepared by the ABS according to assumptions reflecting prevailing trends agreed to by the Australian Capital Territory Electoral Commission".

No liability will be accepted by the ABS for any damages arising from decisions or actions based upon this population projection consultancy service

References

The Australia Government the Treasury, Centre for population, 2022, 2022-23 Budget: Australia's Future Population

Charles-Edwards, E., Wilson, T., Bernard, A., Wohland, P., 2021, 'How will COVID-19 impact Australia's future population? A scenario approach', *Applied Geography*, vol.134

³ Except for Hume, which contains a prison

Table 1 - Australian Capital Territory projections

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Acton	Kurrajong	936	1083	15.71%	0.34%	1.50%	1.72%
Ainslie	Kurrajong	4028	3863	-4.10%	1.23%	6.44%	6.13%
Amaroo	Yerrabi	4147	4083	-1.54%	1.30%	6.63%	6.48%
Aranda	Ginninderra	1872	1817	-2.94%	0.58%	2.99%	2.88%
Banks	Brindabella	3697	3574	-3.33%	1.13%	5.91%	5.67%
Barton	Kurrajong	1508	1458	-3.32%	0.46%	2.41%	2.31%
Beard	Kurrajong	0	1	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Belconnen	Ginninderra	4676	5247	12.21%	1.67%	7.48%	8.33%
Belconnen District remainder 1	Ginninderra	7	6	-14.29%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Belconnen District remainder 2	Ginninderra	11	11	0.00%	0.00%	0.02%	0.02%
Bonner	Yerrabi	4064	3901	-4.01%	1.24%	6.50%	6.19%
Bonython	Brindabella	2857	2762	-3.33%	0.88%	4.57%	4.39%
Braddon	Kurrajong	4675	4871	4.19%	1.55%	7.48%	7.73%
Bruce	Ginninderra	4433	4291	-3.20%	1.36%	7.09%	6.81%
Calwell	Brindabella	4234	4093	-3.33%	1.30%	6.77%	6.50%
Campbell	Kurrajong	4982	5068	1.73%	1.61%	7.97%	8.05%
Canberra Airport	Kurrajong	0	38	0.00%	0.01%	0.00%	0.06%
Canberra Central District remainder 1	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Canberra Central District remainder 2	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Canberra City	Kurrajong	2567	2633	2.57%	0.84%	4.11%	4.18%
Capital Hill	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Casey	Yerrabi	4065	4021	-1.08%	1.28%	6.50%	6.38%
Chapman	Murrumbidgee	2216	2121	-4.29%	0.67%	3.54%	3.37%
Charnwood	Ginninderra	2201	2128	-3.32%	0.68%	3.52%	3.38%
Chifley	Murrumbidgee	1849	1788	-3.30%	0.57%	2.96%	2.84%
Chisholm	Brindabella	3896	3766	-3.34%	1.20%	6.23%	5.98%
Conder	Brindabella	3819	3692	-3.33%	1.17%	6.11%	5.86%
Cook	Ginninderra	2194	2121	-3.33%	0.67%	3.51%	3.37%
Coombs	Murrumbidgee	2899	3420	17.97%	1.09%	4.64%	5.43%
Coree District	Murrumbidgee	223	196	-12.11%	0.06%	0.36%	0.31%
Crace	Yerrabi	3026	2926	-3.30%	0.93%	4.84%	4.65%
Curtin	Murrumbidgee	3997	3885	-2.80%	1.23%	6.39%	6.17%
Deakin	Murrumbidgee	2318	2240	-3.36%	0.71%	3.71%	3.56%
Denman Prospect	Murrumbidgee	1746	2313	32.47%	0.73%	2.79%	3.67%
Dickson	Kurrajong	2318	2534	9.32%	0.80%	3.71%	4.02%
Downer	Kurrajong	2938	2981	1.46%	0.95%	4.70%	4.73%

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Duffy	Murrumbidgee	2481	2399	-3.31%	0.76%	3.97%	3.81%
Dunlop	Ginninderra	5005	4839	-3.32%	1.54%	8.00%	7.68%
Evatt	Ginninderra	3977	3845	-3.32%	1.22%	6.36%	6.10%
Fadden	Brindabella	2333	2210	-5.27%	0.70%	3.73%	3.51%
Farrer	Murrumbidgee	2712	2621	-3.36%	0.83%	4.34%	4.16%
Fisher	Murrumbidgee	2276	2200	-3.34%	0.70%	3.64%	3.49%
Florey	Ginninderra	3520	3403	-3.32%	1.08%	5.63%	5.40%
Flynn	Ginninderra	2649	2561	-3.32%	0.81%	4.24%	4.07%
Forde	Yerrabi	2806	2699	-3.81%	0.86%	4.49%	4.29%
Forrest	Kurrajong	1583	1700	7.39%	0.54%	2.53%	2.70%
Franklin	Yerrabi	3944	3813	-3.32%	1.21%	6.31%	6.05%
Fraser	Ginninderra	1582	1530	-3.29%	0.49%	2.53%	2.43%
Fyshwick	Kurrajong	19	21	10.53%	0.01%	0.03%	0.03%
Garran	Murrumbidgee	2403	2323	-3.33%	0.74%	3.84%	3.69%
Gilmore	Brindabella	2022	1955	-3.31%	0.62%	3.23%	3.10%
Giralang	Yerrabi	2419	2338	-3.35%	0.74%	3.87%	3.71%
Gordon	Brindabella	5875	5679	-3.34%	1.80%	9.40%	9.02%
Gowrie	Brindabella	2369	2291	-3.29%	0.73%	3.79%	3.64%
Greenway	Brindabella	2978	2879	-3.32%	0.91%	4.76%	4.57%
Griffith	Kurrajong	4050	4401	8.67%	1.40%	6.48%	6.99%
Gungahlin	Yerrabi	4681	4657	-0.51%	1.48%	7.49%	7.39%
Gungahlin District remainder 1	Yerrabi	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Gungahlin District remainder 2	Yerrabi	6	6	0.00%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Gungahlin District remainder 3	Yerrabi	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Hackett	Kurrajong	2317	3096	33.62%	0.98%	3.71%	4.92%
Hall	Yerrabi	239	231	-3.35%	0.07%	0.38%	0.37%
Harrison	Yerrabi	4718	4561	-3.33%	1.45%	7.55%	7.24%
Hawker	Ginninderra	2225	2150	-3.37%	0.68%	3.56%	3.41%
Higgins	Ginninderra	2354	2275	-3.36%	0.72%	3.76%	3.61%
Holder	Murrumbidgee	2041	1973	-3.33%	0.63%	3.26%	3.13%
Holt	Ginninderra	3982	4034	1.31%	1.28%	6.37%	6.40%
Hughes	Murrumbidgee	2206	2133	-3.31%	0.68%	3.53%	3.39%
Hume	Kurrajong	10	10	0.00%	0.00%	0.02%	0.02%
Isaacs	Murrumbidgee	1890	1827	-3.33%	0.58%	3.02%	2.90%
Isabella Plains	Brindabella	3170	3064	-3.34%	0.97%	5.07%	4.86%
Jacka	Yerrabi	374	362	-3.21%	0.11%	0.60%	0.57%
Jerrabomberra District	Kurrajong	28	26	-7.14%	0.01%	0.04%	0.04%

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Kaleen	Yerrabi	5505	5308	-3.58%	1.69%	8.80%	8.43%
Kambah East	Murrumbidgee	5001	4838	-3.26%	1.54%	8.00%	7.68%
Kambah West	Brindabella	6706	6478	-3.40%	2.06%	10.72%	10.28%
Kingston	Kurrajong	4852	5116	5.44%	1.62%	7.76%	8.12%
Latham	Ginninderra	2771	2678	-3.36%	0.85%	4.43%	4.25%
Lawson	Ginninderra	1333	1289	-3.30%	0.41%	2.13%	2.05%
Lyneham	Kurrajong	3948	4090	3.60%	1.30%	6.31%	6.49%
Lyons	Murrumbidgee	2082	2020	-2.98%	0.64%	3.33%	3.21%
Macarthur	Brindabella	1072	1013	-5.50%	0.32%	1.71%	1.61%
Macgregor	Ginninderra	4748	4590	-3.33%	1.46%	7.59%	7.29%
Macnamara	Ginninderra	0	126	0.00%	0.04%	0.00%	0.20%
Macquarie	Ginninderra	2160	2181	0.97%	0.69%	3.45%	3.46%
Majura District	Kurrajong	113	103	-8.85%	0.03%	0.18%	0.16%
Mawson	Murrumbidgee	2301	2216	-3.69%	0.70%	3.68%	3.52%
Mckellar	Ginninderra	2073	2004	-3.33%	0.64%	3.32%	3.18%
Melba	Ginninderra	2364	2285	-3.34%	0.73%	3.78%	3.63%
Mitchell	Yerrabi	1	2	100.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Molonglo	Murrumbidgee	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Molonglo Valley District remainder	Murrumbidgee	5	5	0.00%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Monash	Brindabella	4230	4089	-3.33%	1.30%	6.76%	6.49%
Moncrieff	Yerrabi	2874	3134	9.05%	1.00%	4.60%	4.98%
Narrabundah	Kurrajong	4645	4490	-3.34%	1.43%	7.43%	7.13%
Ngunnawal	Yerrabi	7456	7251	-2.75%	2.30%	11.92%	11.51%
Nicholls	Yerrabi	5086	4960	-2.48%	1.57%	8.13%	7.87%
Oaks Estate	Kurrajong	244	237	-2.87%	0.08%	0.39%	0.38%
O'Connor	Kurrajong	4334	4190	-3.32%	1.33%	6.93%	6.65%
O'Malley	Murrumbidgee	781	766	-1.92%	0.24%	1.25%	1.22%
Oxley	Brindabella	1264	1223	-3.24%	0.39%	2.02%	1.94%
Paddys River District	Brindabella	76	63	-17.11%	0.02%	0.12%	0.10%
Page	Ginninderra	2020	1953	-3.32%	0.62%	3.23%	3.10%
Palmerston	Yerrabi	3910	3780	-3.32%	1.20%	6.25%	6.00%
Parkes	Kurrajong	2	110	5400.00%	0.03%	0.00%	0.17%
Pearce	Murrumbidgee	2018	1951	-3.32%	0.62%	3.23%	3.10%
Phillip	Murrumbidgee	3272	3164	-3.30%	1.00%	5.23%	5.02%
Pialligo	Kurrajong	107	822	668.22%	0.26%	0.17%	1.31%
Red Hill	Kurrajong	2293	2371	3.40%	0.75%	3.67%	3.76%
Reid	Kurrajong	1415	1645	16.25%	0.52%	2.26%	2.61%
Richardson	Brindabella	2216	2142	-3.34%	0.68%	3.54%	3.40%
Rivett	Murrumbidgee	2443	2361	-3.36%	0.75%	3.91%	3.75%
Russell	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Scullin	Ginninderra	2061	1993	-3.30%	0.63%	3.30%	3.16%
Spence	Ginninderra	1952	1888	-3.28%	0.60%	3.12%	3.00%
Stirling	Murrumbidgee	1526	1475	-3.34%	0.47%	2.44%	2.34%
Strathnairn	Ginninderra	564	1639	190.60%	0.52%	0.90%	2.60%
Stromlo District	Murrumbidgee	33	32	-3.03%	0.01%	0.05%	0.05%
Symonston	Kurrajong	400	421	5.25%	0.13%	0.64%	0.67%
Taylor	Yerrabi	1326	2945	122.10%	0.94%	2.12%	4.68%
Tennent District	Brindabella	21	23	9.52%	0.01%	0.03%	0.04%
Tharwa	Brindabella	51	50	-1.96%	0.02%	0.08%	0.08%
Theodore	Brindabella	2913	2790	-4.22%	0.89%	4.66%	4.43%
Throsby	Yerrabi	1287	1870	45.30%	0.59%	2.06%	2.97%
Torrens	Murrumbidgee	1718	1661	-3.32%	0.53%	2.75%	2.64%
Tuggeranong District remainder 1	Murrumbidgee	9	8	-11.11%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Tuggeranong District remainder 2	Brindabella	24	24	0.00%	0.01%	0.04%	0.04%
Tuggeranong District remainder 3	Brindabella	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Turner	Kurrajong	3242	3309	2.07%	1.05%	5.18%	5.25%
Wanniassa	Brindabella	5815	5621	-3.34%	1.78%	9.30%	8.92%
Waramanga	Murrumbidgee	2006	1939	-3.34%	0.62%	3.21%	3.08%
Watson	Kurrajong	4576	4723	3.21%	1.50%	7.32%	7.50%
Weetangera	Ginninderra	2011	1954	-2.83%	0.62%	3.22%	3.10%
Weston	Murrumbidgee	2766	2674	-3.33%	0.85%	4.42%	4.25%
Weston Creek District remainder	Murrumbidgee	4	0	-100.00%	0.00%	0.01%	0.00%
Whitlam	Murrumbidgee	43	462	974.42%	0.15%	0.07%	0.73%
Woden Valley District remainder	Murrumbidgee	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Wright	Murrumbidgee	2450	2803	14.41%	0.89%	3.92%	4.45%
Yarralumla	Murrumbidgee	2493	2538	1.81%	0.81%	3.99%	4.03%
Total		312655	314930	0.73%	100.00%		

Note 1: The above localities and enrolment figures have undergone minor adjustments to match the functionality of the online geographical mapping tool at www.elections.act.gov.au/redistribution. Where necessary and where the effect is likely to be negligible, the current and projected enrolment figures for certain low populated districts have been merged with adjacent districts or localities and the relevant district has been removed from the list. For instance, electors in Booth district, Williamsdale and Rendezvous Creek have been included in Tennent District; Uriarra Village has been included in Coree district; Kowen District has been included in Majura District; and Cotter River District and Pierces Creek have been included in Paddy's River District.

Table 2 – Projections for current localities in Brindabella

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage Change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Banks	Brindabella	3697	3574	-3.33%	1.13%	5.91%	5.67%
Bonython	Brindabella	2857	2762	-3.33%	0.88%	4.57%	4.39%
Calwell	Brindabella	4234	4093	-3.33%	1.30%	6.77%	6.50%
Chisholm	Brindabella	3896	3766	-3.34%	1.20%	6.23%	5.98%
Conder	Brindabella	3819	3692	-3.33%	1.17%	6.11%	5.86%
Fadden	Brindabella	2333	2210	-5.27%	0.70%	3.73%	3.51%
Gilmore	Brindabella	2022	1955	-3.31%	0.62%	3.23%	3.10%
Gordon	Brindabella	5875	5679	-3.34%	1.80%	9.40%	9.02%
Gowrie	Brindabella	2369	2291	-3.29%	0.73%	3.79%	3.64%
Greenway	Brindabella	2978	2879	-3.32%	0.91%	4.76%	4.57%
Isabella Plains	Brindabella	3170	3064	-3.34%	0.97%	5.07%	4.86%
Kambah West	Brindabella	6706	6478	-3.40%	2.06%	10.72%	10.28%
Macarthur	Brindabella	1072	1013	-5.50%	0.32%	1.71%	1.61%
Monash	Brindabella	4230	4089	-3.33%	1.30%	6.76%	6.49%
Oxley	Brindabella	1264	1223	-3.24%	0.39%	2.02%	1.94%
Paddys River District	Brindabella	76	63	-17.11%	0.02%	0.12%	0.10%
Richardson	Brindabella	2216	2142	-3.34%	0.68%	3.54%	3.40%
Tennent District	Brindabella	21	23	9.52%	0.01%	0.03%	0.04%
Tharwa	Brindabella	51	50	-1.96%	0.02%	0.08%	0.08%
Theodore	Brindabella	2913	2790	-4.22%	0.89%	4.66%	4.43%
Tuggeranong District remainder 2	Brindabella	24	24	0.00%	0.01%	0.04%	0.04%
Tuggeranong District remainder 3	Brindabella	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Wanniassa	Brindabella	5815	5621	-3.34%	1.78%	9.30%	8.92%
Total		61638	59481	-3.50%	18.89%		

Table 3 - Projections for current localities in Ginninderra

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage Change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Aranda	Ginninderra	1872	1817	-2.94%	0.58%	2.99%	2.88%
Belconnen	Ginninderra	4676	5247	12.21%	1.67%	7.48%	8.33%
Belconnen District remainder 1	Ginninderra	7	6	-14.29%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Belconnen District remainder 2	Ginninderra	11	11	0.00%	0.00%	0.02%	0.02%
Bruce	Ginninderra	4433	4291	-3.20%	1.36%	7.09%	6.81%
Charnwood	Ginninderra	2201	2128	-3.32%	0.68%	3.52%	3.38%
Cook	Ginninderra	2194	2121	-3.33%	0.67%	3.51%	3.37%
Dunlop	Ginninderra	5005	4839	-3.32%	1.54%	8.00%	7.68%
Evatt	Ginninderra	3977	3845	-3.32%	1.22%	6.36%	6.10%
Florey	Ginninderra	3520	3403	-3.32%	1.08%	5.63%	5.40%
Flynn	Ginninderra	2649	2561	-3.32%	0.81%	4.24%	4.07%
Fraser	Ginninderra	1582	1530	-3.29%	0.49%	2.53%	2.43%
Hawker	Ginninderra	2225	2150	-3.37%	0.68%	3.56%	3.41%
Higgins	Ginninderra	2354	2275	-3.36%	0.72%	3.76%	3.61%
Holt	Ginninderra	3982	4034	1.31%	1.28%	6.37%	6.40%
Latham	Ginninderra	2771	2678	-3.36%	0.85%	4.43%	4.25%
Lawson	Ginninderra	1333	1289	-3.30%	0.41%	2.13%	2.05%
Macgregor	Ginninderra	4748	4590	-3.33%	1.46%	7.59%	7.29%
Macnamara	Ginninderra	0	126	0.00%	0.04%	0.00%	0.20%
Macquarie	Ginninderra	2160	2181	0.97%	0.69%	3.45%	3.46%
Mckellar	Ginninderra	2073	2004	-3.33%	0.64%	3.32%	3.18%
Melba	Ginninderra	2364	2285	-3.34%	0.73%	3.78%	3.63%
Page	Ginninderra	2020	1953	-3.32%	0.62%	3.23%	3.10%
Scullin	Ginninderra	2061	1993	-3.30%	0.63%	3.30%	3.16%
Spence	Ginninderra	1952	1888	-3.28%	0.60%	3.12%	3.00%
Strathnairn	Ginninderra	564	1639	190.60%	0.52%	0.90%	2.60%
Weetangera	Ginninderra	2011	1954	-2.83%	0.62%	3.22%	3.10%
Total		64745	64838	0.14%	20.59%		

Table 4 - Projections for current localities in Kurrajong

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage Change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Acton	Kurrajong	936	1083	0.1571	0.0034	0.015	0.0172
Ainslie	Kurrajong	4028	3863	-4.10%	1.23%	6.44%	6.13%
Barton	Kurrajong	1508	1458	-3.32%	0.46%	2.41%	2.31%
Beard	Kurrajong	0	1	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Braddon	Kurrajong	4675	4871	4.19%	1.55%	7.48%	7.73%
Campbell	Kurrajong	4982	5068	1.73%	1.61%	7.97%	8.05%
Canberra Airport	Kurrajong	0	38	0.00%	0.01%	0.00%	0.06%
Canberra Central District remainder 1	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Canberra Central District remainder 2	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Canberra City	Kurrajong	2567	2633	2.57%	0.84%	4.11%	4.18%
Capital Hill	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Dickson	Kurrajong	2318	2534	9.32%	0.80%	3.71%	4.02%
Downer	Kurrajong	2938	2981	1.46%	0.95%	4.70%	4.73%
Forrest	Kurrajong	1583	1700	7.39%	0.54%	2.53%	2.70%
Fyshwick	Kurrajong	19	21	10.53%	0.01%	0.03%	0.03%
Griffith	Kurrajong	4050	4401	8.67%	1.40%	6.48%	6.99%
Hackett	Kurrajong	2317	3096	33.62%	0.98%	3.71%	4.92%
Hume	Kurrajong	10	10	0.00%	0.00%	0.02%	0.02%
Jerrabomberra District	Kurrajong	28	26	-7.14%	0.01%	0.04%	0.04%
Kingston	Kurrajong	4852	5116	5.44%	1.62%	7.76%	8.12%
Lyneham	Kurrajong	3948	4090	3.60%	1.30%	6.31%	6.49%
Majura District	Kurrajong	113	103	-8.85%	0.03%	0.18%	0.16%
Narrabundah	Kurrajong	4645	4490	-3.34%	1.43%	7.43%	7.13%
Oaks Estate	Kurrajong	244	237	-2.87%	0.08%	0.39%	0.38%
O'Connor	Kurrajong	4334	4190	-3.32%	1.33%	6.93%	6.65%
Parkes	Kurrajong	2	110	5400.00%	0.03%	0.00%	0.17%
Pialligo	Kurrajong	107	822	668.22%	0.26%	0.17%	1.31%
Red Hill	Kurrajong	2293	2371	3.40%	0.75%	3.67%	3.76%
Reid	Kurrajong	1415	1645	16.25%	0.52%	2.26%	2.61%
Russell	Kurrajong	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Symonston	Kurrajong	400	421	5.25%	0.13%	0.64%	0.67%
Turner	Kurrajong	3242	3309	2.07%	1.05%	5.18%	5.25%
Watson	Kurrajong	4576	4723	3.21%	1.50%	7.32%	7.50%
Total		62130	65411	5.28%	20.76%		

Table 5 - Projections for current localities in Murrumbidgee

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage Change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Chapman	Murrumbidgee	2216	2121	-4.29%	0.67%	3.54%	3.37%
Chifley	Murrumbidgee	1849	1788	-3.30%	0.57%	2.96%	2.84%
Coombs	Murrumbidgee	2899	3420	17.97%	1.09%	4.64%	5.43%
Coree District	Murrumbidgee	223	196	-12.11%	0.06%	0.36%	0.31%
Curtin	Murrumbidgee	3997	3885	-2.80%	1.23%	6.39%	6.17%
Deakin	Murrumbidgee	2318	2240	-3.36%	0.71%	3.71%	3.56%
Denman Prospect	Murrumbidgee	1746	2313	32.47%	0.73%	2.79%	3.67%
Duffy	Murrumbidgee	2481	2399	-3.31%	0.76%	3.97%	3.81%
Farrer	Murrumbidgee	2712	2621	-3.36%	0.83%	4.34%	4.16%
Fisher	Murrumbidgee	2276	2200	-3.34%	0.70%	3.64%	3.49%
Garran	Murrumbidgee	2403	2323	-3.33%	0.74%	3.84%	3.69%
Holder	Murrumbidgee	2041	1973	-3.33%	0.63%	3.26%	3.13%
Hughes	Murrumbidgee	2206	2133	-3.31%	0.68%	3.53%	3.39%
Isaacs	Murrumbidgee	1890	1827	-3.33%	0.58%	3.02%	2.90%
Kambah East	Murrumbidgee	5001	4838	-3.26%	1.54%	8.00%	7.68%
Lyons	Murrumbidgee	2082	2020	-2.98%	0.64%	3.33%	3.21%
Mawson	Murrumbidgee	2301	2216	-3.69%	0.70%	3.68%	3.52%
Molonglo	Murrumbidgee	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Molonglo Valley District remainder	Murrumbidgee	5	5	0.00%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
O'Malley	Murrumbidgee	781	766	-1.92%	0.24%	1.25%	1.22%
Pearce	Murrumbidgee	2018	1951	-3.32%	0.62%	3.23%	3.10%
Phillip	Murrumbidgee	3272	3164	-3.30%	1.00%	5.23%	5.02%
Rivett	Murrumbidgee	2443	2361	-3.36%	0.75%	3.91%	3.75%
Stirling	Murrumbidgee	1526	1475	-3.34%	0.47%	2.44%	2.34%
Stromlo District	Murrumbidgee	33	32	-3.03%	0.01%	0.05%	0.05%
Torrens	Murrumbidgee	1718	1661	-3.32%	0.53%	2.75%	2.64%
Tuggeranong District remainder 1	Murrumbidgee	9	8	-11.11%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Waramanga	Murrumbidgee	2006	1939	-3.34%	0.62%	3.21%	3.08%
Weston	Murrumbidgee	2766	2674	-3.33%	0.85%	4.42%	4.25%
Weston Creek District remainder	Murrumbidgee	4	0	-100.00%	0.00%	0.01%	0.00%
Whitlam	Murrumbidgee	43	462	974.42%	0.15%	0.07%	0.73%
Woden Valley District remainder	Murrumbidgee	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Wright	Murrumbidgee	2450	2803	14.41%	0.89%	3.92%	4.45%
Yarralumla	Murrumbidgee	2493	2538	0.0181	0.0081	0.0399	0.0403
Total		62208	62352	0.23%	19.80%		

Table 6 - Projections for current localities in Yerrabi

Locality	Current electorate	Actual persons enrolled 31 Aug 2022	Projected persons enrolled 19 Oct 2024	Percentage Change	Projected proportion of the ACT	Current quota	Projected quota
Amaroo	Yerrabi	4147	4083	-1.54%	1.30%	6.63%	6.48%
Bonner	Yerrabi	4064	3901	-4.01%	1.24%	6.50%	6.19%
Casey	Yerrabi	4065	4021	-1.08%	1.28%	6.50%	6.38%
Crace	Yerrabi	3026	2926	-3.30%	0.93%	4.84%	4.65%
Forde	Yerrabi	2806	2699	-3.81%	0.86%	4.49%	4.29%
Franklin	Yerrabi	3944	3813	-3.32%	1.21%	6.31%	6.05%
Giralang	Yerrabi	2419	2338	-3.35%	0.74%	3.87%	3.71%
Gungahlin	Yerrabi	4681	4657	-0.51%	1.48%	7.49%	7.39%
Gungahlin District remainder 1	Yerrabi	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Gungahlin District remainder 2	Yerrabi	6	6	0.00%	0.00%	0.01%	0.01%
Gungahlin District remainder 3	Yerrabi	0	0	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Hall	Yerrabi	239	231	-3.35%	0.07%	0.38%	0.37%
Harrison	Yerrabi	4718	4561	-3.33%	1.45%	7.55%	7.24%
Jacka	Yerrabi	374	362	-3.21%	0.11%	0.60%	0.57%
Kaleen	Yerrabi	5505	5308	-3.58%	1.69%	8.80%	8.43%
Mitchell	Yerrabi	1	2	100.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Moncrieff	Yerrabi	2874	3134	9.05%	1.00%	4.60%	4.98%
Ngunnawal	Yerrabi	7456	7251	-2.75%	2.30%	11.92%	11.51%
Nicholls	Yerrabi	5086	4960	-2.48%	1.57%	8.13%	7.87%
Palmerston	Yerrabi	3910	3780	-3.32%	1.20%	6.25%	6.00%
Taylor	Yerrabi	1326	2945	122.10%	0.94%	2.12%	4.68%
Throsby	Yerrabi	1287	1870	45.30%	0.59%	2.06%	2.97%
Total		61934	62848	1.48%	19.96%		

Map of current boundaries

